County Council Meeting

Beaufort County, SC

Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls
Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort and virtually through zoom

Monday, December 13, 2021
5:30 PM *OR IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE CAUCUS MEETING*

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION - COUNCIL MEMBER LAWRENCE MCELYNN

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

4, APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. BREAK FOR TREE LIGHTING CEREMONY

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - SEPTEMBER 27, 2021 & OCTOBER 11, 2021

7. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

CITIZEN COMMENTS

8. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language)

COMMITTEE REPORTS
9. LIASION AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ACTION ITEMS

10. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
11. MATTERS ARISING OUT OF CAUCUS EXECUTIVE SESSION




13.

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO CONVEY A PORTION OF, ACCEPT A DEED FOR, AND CONVEY A PERPETUAL
EASEMENT ON A PORTION OF PROPERTY OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY WITH TMS NO. R600 021 000
0673 0000; EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO A DEED OF PERPETUAL EASEMENT ON A PORTION OF THE
PROPERTY WITH TMS NO. R600 021 000 0007 0000; AND ACCEPT A DONATION TO THE RURAL AND
CRITICAL LANDS PROGRAM

Vote at First Reading on November 8, 2021 - 7:4

FIRST READING BY TITLE ONLY OF AN ORDINANCE REDISTRICTING THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT
COUNTY

FIRST READING BY TITLE ONLY OF AN ORDINANCE ALLOCATING $166,397.00 TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY
PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE TO COVER A COST OF LIVING INCREASE, COMPENSATION STUDY INCREASE,
AND COST REQUIRED TO HIRE ANOTHER MAGISTRATE COURT ATTORNEY.

FIRST READING BY TITLE ONLY OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2021-22 BUDGET ORDINANCE TO
REFLECT THE RECEIPT OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT ("ARPA") FUNDS FROM THE US GOVERNMENT

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE SC TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE BANK

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO REFUND THE $3001.54 AMOUNT OF
IMPACT FEES PAID BY BEAUFORT HOUSING AUTHORITY ON 2 RESIDENTIAL UNITS FRONTING RIBAUT
ROAD.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO WAIVE OR REFUND THE $17,768 TOTAL
AMOUNT OF IMPACT FEES DUE OR PAID BY HILTON HEAD REGIONAL HABITAT FOR HUMANITY ON 8
RESIDENTIAL UNITS FRONTING ALEX PATTERSON ROAD.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS
AND PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE FEE SIMPLE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS TMS# R300 028
000 0016 0000 AND ALSO KNOWN AS BERMUDA BLUFF

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL NECESSARY
DOCUMENTS FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF PROPERTIES ENCUMBERING THE ROAD RIGHT OF WAY FOR KLINE
CIRCLE

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING FEDERAL FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE REIMBURSABLE GRANT
PROGRAMS

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE BEAUFORT COUNTY FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE POLICY

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX (STATE 2%) BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS TO TOURISM-RELATED
ORGANIZATIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF $800,000.

ACCEPTANCE OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FOR THE STUART POINT ROAD PATHWAY
PROJECT.

APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF TWO LOTS ADJACENT TO THE OLD COURTHOUSE FROM THE GG DOWLING
FAMILY TRUST - FISCAL IMPACT WOULD BE IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,900,000. A FUNDING SOURCE
NEEDS TO BE IDENTIFIED.

APPROVAL OF 2022 COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULES

County Council Agenda — Beaufort County, SC



appISf8e3ac9596d44ec6bcb05f79645f7f9e

CITIZEN COMMENTS

27.

28.

CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language)

ADJOURNMENT

County Council Agenda — Beaufort County, SC




CONSENT AGENDA

Items Originating from the Executive Committee

1.

2.

REQUEST TO PURCHASE CAT MODEL 120 MOTORGRADER

APPOINTMENT TO THE BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR A PARTIAL TERM
EXPIRING IN 2023.

Applicants:

CAROLYN M. BANNER, Ph.D.

ANGELA D. SIMMONS Ph.D.

Items Originating from the Finance Committee

3.

THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE regarding a TEXT AMENDMENT TO BEAUFORT COUNTY CODE OF
ORDINANCES: ARTICLE VII, DIVISION 4, SECTION 2-508; SECTION 2-509; SECTION 2-513; SECTION 2-517;
AND SECTION 2-541 TO UPDATE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES, TO PROVIDE NECESSARY CONTRACT DOLLAR
THRESHOLD CHANGES AND TO UPDATE EXEMPTION PROVISIONS AND PROCEDURES.

Items Originating from the Natural Resources Committee

|

5

I~

|0

THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN ACCESS AND
UTILITY EASEMENT FOR A PORTION OF A RIGHT OF WAY OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY KNOWN AS
CASSIDY DRIVE OFF BUCKWALTER PARKWAY IN BULFFTON TOWNSHIP SOUTH CAROLINA

THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN COUNTY OWNED REAL PROPERTY AS SURPLUS
PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL NECESSARY
DOCUMENTS TO SELL REAL PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS TMS NO. R700 036 000 13J 0000, R700 036 000 0112
0000, R700 036 000 0109 0000, R700 036 000 002C 0000 AND R600 036 000 001B 0000

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT UTILITY ORDINANCE
AS ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 26, 2016 TO PROVIDE FOR THE ADOPTION OF STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
STANDARDS SET FORTH IN THE SOUTHERN LOWCOUNTRY DESIGN MANUAL TO MEET THE MUNICIPAL
SEPARATE STORMSEWER SYSTEM (MS4) PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
UTILITY ORDINANCE AS ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 26TH, 2016 TO ADDRESS THE ADOPTION OF THE
SOUTHERN LOWCOUNTRY DESIGN MANUAL

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CODE (CDC): SECTION A.3.40 (PERMITTED ACTIVITIES) TO REVISE THE LADY’S ISLAND EXPANDED HOME
BUSINESS DISTRICT TO INCLUDE SHORT-TERM RENTALS AS A SPECIAL USE.

Items Originating from the Public Facilities Committee

9.

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING BEAUFORT COUNTY ORDINANCE 2008/17 AND
ADOPTING THE BUCKWALTER ACCESS MANAGEMENT PLAN

APPROVALTO APPLY FOR THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 2021 FOR THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT
— (FISCAL IMPACT: INCOMING GRANT FUNDS - 51,995,069)

APPROVAL TO APPLY FOR THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 2021 FOR THE BEAUFORT EXECUTIVE
AIRPORT — (FISCAL IMPACT: INCOMING GRANT FUNDS - $32,000)

APPROVAL OF THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) AND BEAUFORT EXECUTIVE AIRPORT (ARW)
HANGAR RENT INCREASE APPROVAL.

County Council Agenda — Beaufort County, SC




13.  CONTRACT AWARD TO BRANTLEY CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, LLC, FOR SUN CITY EMS/FIRE
RENOVATIONS ($1,234,000)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

County Council Agenda — Beaufort County, SC




Item 6.

(o)

®
(-
o
O
L
-
<
w
&

Caucus

Beaufort County, SC

This meeting was held both in person in Council Chambers at 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort, and
virtually through Zoom.

Monday, September 27, 2021
5:00 PM

1. CALLTO ORDER
Council Chairman Passiment called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM

PRESENT

Chairman Joseph F. Passiment
Vice Chairman D. Paul Sommerville
Council Member Logan Cunningham
Council Member Gerald Dawson
Council Member Brian Flewelling
Council Member York Glover
Council Member Stu Rodman
Council Member Chris Hervochon
Council Member Alice Howard
Council Member Mark Lawson

ABSENT
Council Member Lawrence McElynn

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council Member Brian Flewelling led the Pledge of Allegiance.
3. FOIA

Committee Chairman Passiment noted that the Public Notification of this meeting has been published,
posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Glover to approve the
County Caucus agenda. The motion was approved without objection.




Item 6.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

5. AGENDA REVIEW

Chairman Passisment stated for the Committee Chair's to not go through the entire consent agenda just
touch on the important points.

6. COUNCIL MEMBER DISCUSSION

Council Member Dawson stated he does not support item#13 Dale PDR.

Council Member Rodman stated the road on Highway 170 from 278 to 462 to fix the roads and have a talk
with DOT about fixing the road since it is the worse section of road.

Council Member Cunningham stated an area that needs to be fixed is on 170 near Ashley Furniture.
EXECUTIVE SESSION

7. Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Howard to go into
Executive Session to receive legal advice where the legal advice relates to a pending, threatened, or
potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client privilege (HHI litigation) (Auditor
Litigation) (Possible Dale PDR transaction. The motion was approved without objection.

8. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting Adjourned at 6:06 PM.

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph F. Passiment, Jr., Chairman

ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council
Ratified:

Caucus Minutes — Beaufort County, SC




Item 6.

County Council Meeting
Beaufort County, SC
This meeting was held both in person and virtually through zoom.

Monday, September 27, 2021
6:00 PM

1. CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Passiment called the meeting to order at 6:12 PM.

PRESENT

Chairman Joseph F. Passiment

Vice Chairman D. Paul Sommerville
Council Member York Glover
Council Member Chris Hervochon
Council Member Stu Rodman
Council Member Alice Howard
Council Member Mark Lawson
Council Member Lawrence McElynn
Council Member Gerald Dawson
Council Member Brian Flewelling
Council Member Logan Cunningham

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

Council Member Brian Flewelling led the Pledge of Allegiance and gave the invocation.
3. FOIA

Chairman Passiment stated public notice of this meeting had been published, posted, and distributed in
compliance with the SC FOIA Act.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion: It was moved by Vice Chairman Sommerville, seconded by Council Member Rodman to approve
the agenda. The motion was approved without objection.

5. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

To see County Administrator, Eric Greenway's report please click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

10.

11.

Item 6.

THE 2021 CASHVEST NATIONAL LEADERSHIP AWARD PRESENTATION FOR MARIA WALLS, BEAUFORT
COUNTY TREASURER

Beaufort County Treasurer, Maria Walls, received the Cashvest National Leadership Award.
Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

CITIZEN COMMENTS

David Trail stated concerns regarding the Dale PDR Conservation Easement agenda item.

Mike McShane stated concerns regarding the Dale PDR Conservation Easement agenda item.
John Trask Il spoke regarding concerns he has regarding the Campground Standards agenda item.

Cynthia Jenkins spoke in favor of the Community Foundation of the Lowcountry's 2021 local Atax Grant
Award.

Richard Campbell stated concerns the Friends of Historic Point have regarding the Marcie Smalls House
being designated as a historic landmark.

Alexander McBride, Pastor of the First African Baptist Church, spoke in favor the Marcie Smalls House
and it’s important place in our community aiding in telling the story Mr. Smalls heritage.

Billy Keyserling requested that council approve the funds requested in order to restore the Marcie
Smalls house and place it on the historic register.

Steve Amorrow, President of the Friends of Historic Point Association spoke about the concerns his
organization has regarding the Marcie Smalls House.
LIASION AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

Council Member Alice Howard recognized the county administrator and staff for their efforts in getting
pickleball established in Beaufort County.

Council Member Mark Lawson reviewed the Finance committee consent agenda items
Council Member Alice Howard reviewed the Natural Resources Committee consent agenda items.

Council Member Stu Rodman reviewed the Public Facilities Committee consent agenda items.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: It was moved by Vice-Chairman Sommerville, seconded by Council Member Dawson to approve
the consent agenda. The motion was approved without objection.

MATTERS ARISING OUT OF THE CAUCUS EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Chairman stated this would be taken up during Item# 13 on the main agenda.

SECOND READING OF A TEXT AMENDMENT TO BEAUFORT COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER
42, ARTICLE Il, DIVISION 3, SECTION 42.-81 TO UPDATE BOUNDARIES (SHELDON FIRE DISTRICT)

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Council Member Flewelling to approve
public hearing and second reading of a text amendment to Beaufort County Code of Ordinances, Chapter
42, Article Il, Division 3, Section 42.-81 to update Boundaries (Sheldon Fire District).

The Chairman opened the floor for a public hearing.

No one came forward.
County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

12.

13.

Item 6.

The Chairman closed the public hearing.
Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.

PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 3.1.60 (CONSOLIDATED USE TABLE) AND SECTION
4.1.190 (RECREATION FACILITY: CAMPGROUNDS) TO REVISE THE CAMPGROUND STANDARDS

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Council Member Rodman to approve
public hearing and second reading of an Ordinance regarding a Text Amendment to the Community
Development Code (CDC): Section 3.1.60 (Consolidated Use Table) and Section 4.1.190 (Recreation
Facility: Campgrounds) to revise the Campground Standards. The motion is approved without objection.

The Chairman opened the floor for a public hearing.

No one came forward.

The Chairman closed the public hearing.

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Council Member Sommerville, seconded by Council Member
Cunningham to allow staff to consider extending the time permitted to 30 to 82.

Motion Rescinded

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.

PUBLIC HEARING OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF A CONSERVATION EASEMENT
ON REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS TMS# R700 040 000 0001 0000 AND R700 030 000 0004 0000 AND ALSO
KNOWN AS DALE

Motion: It was moved by Vice-Chairman Sommerville, seconded by Council Member Cunningham to
execute the necessary documents, and provide funding for the purchase of a Conservation Easement on
real property known as TMS# R700 040 000 0001 0000 And R700 030 000 0004 0000 and also known as
Dale.

The Chairman opened the floor for a public hearing.

Linda Hills stated concerns she has about the lack of monthly communication between council and their
constituents regarding policies and procedures being passed.

The Chairman closed the public hearing.
Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

Motion to Amend:_It was moved by Vice-Chairman Sommerville, seconded by Council Member
Cunningham to include the deletion of the whereas clause that allows the easement to be given back to
the Department of Defense or the US Government and the final acreage be determined by the survey that
has been done.

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC

10



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

14.

15.

16.

Item 6.

The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover,
Council Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn, Council Member
Flewelling, Council Member Cunningham. Voting Nay: Council Member Hervochon, Council Member
Lawson, Council Member Dawson. The motion passed 8:3.

FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO REPURPOSE COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF THE LOWCOUNTRY’S
2021 LOCAL ATAX GRANT AWARD

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Council Member Rodman to approve
first reading of an Ordinance to Repurpose Community Foundation of the Lowcountry’s 2021 Local ATAX
Grant Award.

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

The Vote - Voting Yea: Council Member Rodman, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn,
Council Member Dawson. Voting Nay: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council
Member Glover, Council Member Hervochon, Council Member Howard, Council Member Flewelling,
Council Member Cunningham. The motion failed 4:7.

FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A
MODIFICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH PARCEL #R112-031-000-0628-0000

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Vice-Chairman Sommerville to
approve first reading of an ordinance authorizing the County Administrator to execute a modification of
drainage easement associated with parcel #R112-031-000-0628-0000.

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.

EXTEND PAST 8 O’CLOCK

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by Vice-Chairman Sommerville to go
past 8'Clock.

The Vote - Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Glover,
Council Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council Member
McElynn, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member Cunningham. Voting Nay: Council Member
Hervochon, Council Member Dawson. The motion passed 8:2.

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION REGARDING IMPLEMENTATION OF A COVID-19 INPATIENT EMPLOYEE
LEAVE DONATION PROGRAM AS DETAILED IN EXHIBIT “A”

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Glover to approve the
resolution regarding implementation of a COVID-19 Inpatient Employee Leave Donation Program as
detailed in Exhibit “A”.

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC

11



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

17. Resolution to accept Federal Grant: Award # 1H79TI084543-01 in the amount of $1.9 million

Item 6.

Motion: It was moved by Vice-Chairman Sommerville, Seconded by Council Member Rodman to approve

the Resolution to accept Federal Grant: Award # 1H79T1084543-01 in the amount of $1.9 million.

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection.

18. CITIZEN COMMENTS

Billy Keyserling stated he will withdraw the request on item#14

19. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned 8 PM

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph F. Passiment, Jr., Chairman

ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council
Ratified:

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC

12



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/140694

Item 6.

(o)

®
(-
o
O
L
-
<
w
&

Caucus

Beaufort County, SC

This meeting will be held both in person in Council Chambers at 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort,
and virtually through Zoom. Please be aware that there is limited seating available for the in-
person meeting and attendees must practice social distancing

Monday, October 11, 2021
5:00 PM

1. CALL TO ORDER
Council Chairman Passiment called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM

PRESENT

Chairman Joseph F. Passiment
Vice-Chairman D. Paul Sommerville
Council Member Logan Cunningham
Council Member Gerald Dawson
Council Member Brian Flewelling
Council Member York Glover
Council Member Stu Rodman
Council Member Chris Hervochon
Council Member Alice Howard
Council Member Mark Lawson
Council Member Lawrence McElynn

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman Passiment led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. FOIA

Chairman Passiment noted that the Public Notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and

distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Vice-Chairman Sommerville

to amend the agenda to remove legal issues related to HWY-278 Project from Executive Session. The

motion was approved without objection.

13




Item 6.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

5. AGENDA REVIEW

Chairman Passiment asked that Committee Chairman only summarize their consent agenda items

6. COUNCIL MEMBER DISCUSSION

Chairman Passisment stated there is a Special Council Meeting that will be held on October 27, 2021, at 6
PM at the USCB Theater to discuss the redistricting areas of Beaufort County that will be a hybrid meeting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

7. PURSUANT TO S.C. CODE SEC. 30-4-70(A)(2) RECEIPT OF LEGAL ADVICE WHERE THE LEGAL ADVICE
RELATES TO A PENDING, THREATENED, OR POTENTIAL CLAIM OR OTHER MATTERS COVERED BY THE
ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE (LEGAL ISSUES RELATED TO HWY-278 PROJECT) (LEGAL ISSUES RELATED
TO SCHOOL IMPACT FEE IGAS WITH MUNICIPALITIES) (STATUS OF EMPLOYMENT RELATED CLAIMS)
(STATUS OF FOIA LITIGATION)

Executive Session

Motion: It was moved by Vice-Chairman Sommerville, seconded by Council Member McElynn to go into

Executive Session. The motion was approved without objection.

8. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 5:57 PM

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph F. Passiment, Jr., Chairman

ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council
Ratified:

Caucus Minutes — Beaufort County, SC

14




Item 6.

County Council Meeting
Beaufort County, SC

This meeting was held both in person in Council Chambers at 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort, and
virtually through Zoom.

Monday, October 11, 2021
6:00 PM

1. CALL TO ORDER
Council Chairman Passiment called the meeting to order at 6 PM

PRESENT

Chairman Joseph F. Passiment
Vice-Chairman D. Paul Sommerville
Council Member York Glover
Council Member Chris Hervochon
Council Member Stu Rodman
Council Member Alice Howard
Council Member Mark Lawson
Council Member Lawrence McElynn
Council Member Gerald Dawson
Council Member Brian Flewelling
Council Member Logan Cunningham

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

Council Member Mark Lawson led the Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation.
3. FOIA

Chairman Passiment noted that the Public Notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and
distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, seconded by Council Member Cunningham to
approve the agenda. The motion was approved without objection.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Vice-Chairman Sommerville to approve
the minutes from June 28, 2021, June 30, 2021, and July 26, 2021. The motion was approved without

15




10.

11.

12.

13.

Item 6.

objection.

ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

To see County Administrator, Eric Greenway's report please click the link below.
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/141433
PROCLAMATION PRESENTATION TO THE YOUNG MARINES IN OBSERVANCE OF RED RIBBON WEEK

Council Member Larry McElynn read and presented a proclamation honoring The Young Marines in
observance of Red Ribbon Week

PRESENTATION OF A PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING THE BEAUFORT COUNTY ALCOHOL AND DRUG
ABUSE PREVENTION DEPARTMENT IN OBSERVANCE OF RED RIBBON WEEK — COUNCIL MEMBER
MCELYNN

Council Member McElynn read and presented a proclamation to Beaufort County’s Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Department honoring Red Ribbon Week.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

Tony Cristela commented regarding a conservation easement.

Chuck Newton commented regarding the 2021 Comprehensive Plan.

LIASION AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

Council Member Cunningham reviewed and explained items on the consent agenda from Community
Services.

Council Member Howard reviewed and explained items on the consent agenda from Natural Resources.
Council Member Rodman reviewed and explained items on the consent agenda from Public Facilities.

Chairman Passiment stated the Special Meeting will be held at USCB Theater on October 27, 2021, at 6
PM for redistricting the county.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Council Member Cunningham to
approve the consent agenda. The motion was approved without objection.

MATTERS ARISING OUT OF THE CAUCUS EXECUTIVE SESSION

No formal motion

THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTION 3.1.60 (CONSOLIDATED USE TABLE) AND SECTION 4.1.190
(RECREATION FACILITY: CAMPGROUNDS) TO REVISE THE CAMPGROUND STANDARDS

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Vice-Chairman Sommerville, seconded by Council Member Howard
to amend Community Development Code (CDC): Section 3.1.60 (Consolidated Use Table) and Section
4.1.190 (Recreation Facility: Campgrounds) to revise the Campground Standards with the following
revisions, the primitive campgrounds maximum length of stay is revised from 14 days in any 30 day period
to 60 days in any given 90 day period, primitive campgrounds are limitied to 15 sites must have a minimum
site_ area of 3 acres that have no restrictions on trailer or RV length. For semi developed land and

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC

16



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/141433

Item 6.

developed campgrounds maximum length of stay is revised from 30 days in any 60 day period to 60 days
in any 90 day period.

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below:

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/141433

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection

14. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE “ENVISION BEAUFORT COUNTY 2040
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN” AND “BEAUFORT COUNTY CONNECTS BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN PLAN 2021”
AS AN APPENDIX TO THE PLAN.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Council Member Rodman to approve
first reading of an ordinance adopting the “Envision Beaufort County 2040 Comprehensive Plan” and
“Beaufort County Connects Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 2021"” as an appendix to the Plan. The motion was
approved without objection.

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below:

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/141433

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection

15. APPROVAL TO APPLY — PALMETTO PRIDE 2022 GRANTS: KEEP SOUTH CAROLINA BEAUTIFUL, LITTER
PREVENTION, LITTER CREW AND LITTER ENFORCEMENT

Motion: It was moved by Vince-Chairman Sommerville, seconded by Council Member Lawson approved
to Apply — Palmetto Pride 2022 Grants: Keep South Carolina Beautiful, Litter Prevention, Litter Crew and
Litter Enforcement. The motion was approved without objection.

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below:

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/141433

The Vote - The motion was approved without objection

16. CITIZEN COMMENTS

No citizens comment

17. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 6:44 PM

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph F. Passiment, Jr., Chairman

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC

17



https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/141433
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/141433
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/141433

ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council
Ratified:

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC

Item 6.

18




Item 12.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO
CONVEY A PORTION OF, ACCEPT A DEED FOR, AND CONVEY A PERPETUAL EASEMENT ON A PORTION OF
PROPERTY OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY WITH TMS NO. R600 021 000 0673 0000; EXECUTE AN
AMENDMENT TO A DEED OF PERPETUAL EASEMENT ON A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY WITH TMS NO. R600
021 000 0007 0000, AND ACCEPT A DONATION TO THE RURAL AND CRITICAL LANDS PROGRAM

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

County Council

November 8, 2021 (1% reading)

December 13, 2021 (2™ reading and Public Hearing)
January 10, 2022 (3" reading)

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Manager and Brittany Ward, Deputy County Attorney (10 minutes)

ITEM BACKGROUND:

On October 25, 2021, County Council approved a motion (7:4) to move the ordinance forward

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

Execute the necessary documents to convey Parcel A by way of a quit claim deed to James E. Crosby, Michael
S. Crosby, and Geoffrey S. Crosby.

Execute the necessary documents and accept the conveyance of any and all interest in Parcel B from James E.

Crosby, Michael S. Crosby, and Geoffrey S. Crosby.

Execute the necessary documents to convey a perpetual easement on Parcel B for the continued existing use
of the real property to James E. Crosby, Michael S. Crosby, and Geoffrey S. Crosby.

Accept from Robert L. Graves a donation of Twenty-Five Thousand ($25,000) Dollars to the Rural and Critical
Lands Program.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Possible survey costs

Acceptance of $25,000 donation

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Approve the ordinance

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve the ordinance as written.
Motion to amend the ordinance.

Motion to deny the ordinance.

19




AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO CONVEY A PORTION OF, ACCEPT A DEED FOR, AND
CONVEY A PERPETUAL EASEMENT ON A PORTION OF PROPERTY OWNED BY
BEAUFORT COUNTY WITH TMS NO. R600 021 000 0673 0000; EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT
TO A DEED OF PERPETUAL EASEMENT ON A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY WITH TMS
NO. R600 021 000 0007 0000; AND ACCEPT A DONATION TO THE RURAL AND CRITICAL
LANDS PROGRAM

WHEREAS, Beaufort County (“County”) purchased real property from Robert L. Graves, and is
the current fee simple owner of the real property known as Okatie River Park with TMS No. R600 021 000
0673 0000 and being recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Beaufort County, South Carolina
on December 20, 2013, in Book 3293 Pages 2884-2893; hereinafter referred to as the “Public Park”; and

WHEREAS, the County purchased the Public Park through the Rural and Critical Lands Program
and intends to develop a public passive park on the real property; and

WHEREAS, the County desires to provide the citizens and visitors of Beaufort County with public
access to the Public Park in the most direct and accessible manner possible; and

WHEREAS, adjacent to the Public Park is the real property with TMS No. R600 021 000 0007
0000 which was previously owned by Verna G. Croshy, and is currently owned by James E. Crosby,
Michael S. Crosby, and Geoffrey S. Crosby; hereinafter the “Adjacent Property”; and

WHEREAS, Verna Crosby previously provided Robert L. Graves a Deed of Perpetual Easement
of ingress and egress over a portion of the Adjacent Property for livestock, farm equipment and human foot
traffic; whereby the easement was executed on January 30, 1996, and recorded in the Beaufort County
Register of Deeds in Book 432 Page 5389; hereinafter the “Access Easement”; and

WHEREAS, the land survey dated January 18, 1996 and being recorded in the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Beaufort County, South Carolina in Book 55 Page 82 identifies Parcel A as a
“Disputed Area”, Parcel B which abuts the Adjacent Property, and Parcel C with an Access Easement
located on the Adjacent Property; the aforementioned survey is shown in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the County desires to convey Parcel A by way of a quit claim deed to James E.
Crosby, Michael S. Crosby, and Geoffrey S. Crosby; and

WHEREAS, the owners of the Adjacent Property desire to convey any and all potential interest in
Parcel B to the County; and

WHEREAS, the County desires to convey a perpetual easement on Parcel B for the continued
existing use of the real property to James E. Crosby, Michael S. Crosby, and Geoffrey S. Crosby; and

WHEREAS, the County and owners of the Adjacent Property desire to amend the Access
Easement on Parcel C, including but not limited to, permitting the County to further develop the already
existing dirt pathway and establish a permeable road; to permit public vehicular access to the Public Park;
to require the County to maintain vegetation along the road abutting the Adjacent Property; and to permit
a gated access to the Adjacent Property from the Access Easement; and

WHEREAS, in support of providing the citizens and visitors of Beaufort County vehicular access
to the Public Park, Robert L. Graves desires to provide a Twenty-Five Thousand ($25,000) Dollar donation
to the Rural and Critical Lands Program.

Item 12.

20




NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL, duly
assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator as follows:

1. Execute the necessary documents to convey Parcel A, as shown in Exhibit A, by way of a quit
claim deed to James E. Crosby, Michael S. Croshy, and Geoffrey S. Crosby; and

2. Execute the necessary documents and accept the conveyance of any and all interest in Parcel
B, as shown in Exhibit A, from the owners of the Adjacent Property; and

3. Execute the necessary documents to convey a perpetual easement on Parcel B, as shown in
Exhibit A, for the continued existing use of the real property to James E. Crosby, Michael S.
Croshy, and Geoffrey S. Crosby; and

4. Accept from Robert L. Graves a donation of Twenty-Five Thousand ($25,000) Dollars to the
Rural and Critical Lands Program.

Adopted this day of , 2022,

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

By:

Joseph Passiment, Chairman

ATTEST:

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council

Item 12.

21




r
3
&
5
%)

—
-

%
50
P
\
R
N
R

NVHL 3HIO AL¥30¥d 3t v SNOUDI 0¥ 06E oo T
40 SININHOVOUINT
NIZYIHL DILN03dS SV SHOAINSNS ONVT TYNOISSTAOYS

6861-12-8 0ISN3Y LSY1 VNITOYYD HINOS ‘ALNNOD 1¥04NY38 ‘dIHSNMOL NOLIANTE
W NOGI0ML ‘0¥ Ag 'SIAVHD NOLTM T ¥03 Lv1d ¥ ‘SIAVHD NOLTM T 40 31VIST 3HL 0 NOLYOd ¥ 40 NOISAID ¥

Clictyoyd z D NMEl STAVED d AAVS
8L % £ 7308Vd 40 NOUYOJ ¥ “1Z dYW XVL ‘009 LSIO STAVYD T JATA0H ¥ SIAVHD D VNIAA

i aw
2N

iy S

:
H
3
B
g
M
2
M
IS
N
3
8
:
22

620NN 24 YN U0ioA3)3 paunbay unuuy

0 auoz wold pOO) |p4PS ¥ Y[ SAT 307 SML FTION 40 1S3ND3¥ 3HL 1V 3W AE 03¥vd3dd Lv1d 3ADEY 3HL

Item 12.

N & IV\Q
% '
K
K
ol
8
8
§
Q) “Ru, 8- 2
S S ~
- S @ e
N E3 8 5% 8
o e 8 28 o [ &
o i $ wf ) &g 2
i e Z o - &
I B
& £ 8
H
. i
g
- s
ik
s 2
g 8
M
3
8
8- —w

dulu

o8 o8t
il

.
i

ﬂmll

EXISTING FENCE_
O
% o o
il

ke

/
i

o
e

g

B
I

N/F GRAVES
PARCEL 7

sl

MARSHES OF THE OKATEE RVER

Iumﬂ-mlm

W

°
!
ST

i
inchs
3

=TV

NOT TO SCALE

LOCATION MAP




Office of the Public Defender

Fourteenth Judicial Circuit
Stephanie Smart-Gittings, Circuit Defender

BEAUFORT COUNTY ALLENDALE, HAMPTON & JASPER COUNTIES COLLETON COUNTY
Human Services Building 1 Courthouse Square 319 N. Lucas Street

1905 Duke Street, Room 210 80 Elm Street, Room 133 Walterboro, SC 29488
Post Office Box 525 Post Office Box 506 (843) 549-1633 (Phone)

Beaufort, SC 29902 Hampton, SC 29924 (843) 549-2912 (Fax)

(843) 255-5805 (Phone) (803) 914-2240 (Phone)

(843) 255-9494 (Fax)
November 12, 2021

Beaufort County Finance Council
100 Ribaut Road

Post Office Drawer 1228
Beaufort, SC 29901

RE: FY 2021/2022
Dear Council Members,

The current Beaufort County allocation for the Beaufort County Public Defender’s Office
stands at $1,498,131.00. | am making a mid-year request for additional funding of $166,397.00
in order to maintain staff for the Beaufort County Public Defender’s Office.

Currently 1 have four (4) open previously funded attorney positions with the Beaufort
County Public Defender’s Office. Based on research of neighboring agencies and other Public
Defender’s Offices’ throughout our state, | am proposing the following chart for Public
Defenders in Beaufort County:

Tier 1 Attorney: 65,000 — 85,000
Tier 2 Attorney: 86,000 — 130,000

This is an increase from the funding you provided in 2020 wherein | predicted to hire
Tier 1 attorneys at $56,000 and Tier 2 attorneys at $80,000.

Like many agencies and courts around the state, Covid-19 and the closures that followed
increased the case load for the Beaufort County Public Defender’s Office. This was especially
prevalent in the Beaufort County Magistrate Court. The single attorney assigned to Magistrate
Court became overwhelmed in 2021 with the pending case load, and ultimately, | was required to
use any available funds to hire another attorney to assist in magistrate court. The Beaufort
County Public Defender’s Office now has two attorneys in Magistrate Court; one (1) attorney
handling Beaufort Magistrate Court and one (1) attorney handling Bluffton Magistrate Court.

While this addressed the unyielding issue in Magistrate Court in Beaufort County, | was
unable to give needed salary increases to Beaufort County attorneys and staff members. The
Beaufort County Public Defender’s Office did not receive the previous cost of living increase or
the compensation study increase last year. In order to recruit and retain employees in the
Beaufort County Public Defender’s Office, | am requesting $166,397.00 to cover this cost of

Item 14.

23




living increase, compensation study increase, and cost required to hire another Magistrate Court
attorney.

At this time, | am not requesting additional attorneys for the Beaufort County Public
Defender’s Office. My current immediate need is to compensate the valuable staff members
currently employed with my office, and recruit and retain attorneys for the four (4) available
attorney positions with my office.

| am happy to answer any questions that council may have, and respectfully request to be
heard at your next available council meeting on November 15, 2021.

With kind regards, | am,
Stephanie Smart- Gittings

Stephanie Smart-Gittings
14" Circuit Public Defender

Item 14.

24




Item 14.

NEW HIGHLIGHTS OF BEAUFORT COUNTY || (UPCOMING

PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE: GENERAL SESSIONS
COURT DATES:

November 8 - 12,2021

1. MITIGATION TEAM CREATED IN 2020:

In 2020, the Beaufort County Public Defender’s Office received

funding from the Beaufort County Council which enabled our office November 15 -19, 2021
to be able to form the Mitigation Division of the Public Defender’s December 6 -10, 2021
Office.

December 13 -17, 2021

This team consist of a Mitigation Attorney, a Sentencing/ January 10 -14, 2021

Mitigation Specialist, and an Administrative Assistant.

January 18 -21, 2021

This elite team places a holistic approach to the criminal justice January 31 - February 4, 2021

system and handles a variety of tasks including:

- Assisting attorneys in investigating, analyzing, developing, and
presenting mitigation evidence to the court,

- Develops relationships with clients, their families, local service March 14 — 18, 2021
providers, treatment centers, substance abuse networks,
mental health agencies, and vocational programs aimed at
addressing substance abuse, mental illness, homelessness, or April 11 —15, 2021
other issues that many clients maybe facing, and

- Addresses the collateral consequences associated with General
Sessions cases. May 9 -13, 2021

February 14 - 18, 2021

February 21 — 25, 2021

March 21 - 25, 2021

April 18 =22, 2021

May 16 — 20, 2021
2. BOND COURT DIVISION:

Likewise in 2021, the Beaufort County Public Defender’s Office
created the Bond Court Division. This Division
handles Bond Hearings twice a day at the
Beaufort County Detention Center. A
dedicated Administrate Assistant assists our
attorneys in bond court.

Did you know?

= el 12 0l T The Beaufort County Public Defender’s Office
Two Public Defenders now handle Magistrate Mitigation Division assisted 43 individuals
Court in Beaufort County; one for Beaufort with placement in substance abuse treatment
Magistrate and one for Bluffton Magistrate. centers, homeless shelters, or half-way
housing since August 2020.

Previously one attorney rotated between the
two courts: causing scheduling issues, and a
growing case load.

25




Item 14.

Beaufort Cou nty Court Type Clients  Cases Charges
P b| D f d ) (People) (Incidents) (Warrants/Tickets)
ublic berender s

Ofﬁce Current General Sessions 1371 1805 3164
NumberS (aS Of Magistrate Court 524 583 970
November 10, 2021): Municipal Court 231 261 516

Juvenile 49

Total 2175 2649 4650

DISPOSED CASE COUNT: BEAUFORT COUNTY MAGISTRATE
COURT AND BEAUFORT COUNTY GENERAL SESSIONS COURT

March-21 April-21 June-21 July-21 August-21 September-21

26




BEAUFORT COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE REQUEST:

STAFF MEMBERS COST OF LIVING INCREASES $23,397.00

® |nvestigators, Administrative Assistants, Mitigation Specialist
® This would be a 5.9% cost of living/ retention increase for current staff members.

® Rate at 5.9% which is consistent with the Social Security Administrations 2022 cost of
living increase.

ATTORNEYS RETENTION AND RECRUITING ADJUSTMENT $143,000.00
Tier 1 Attorney: 65,000 — 85,000
Tier 2 Attorney: 86,000 — 130,000

TOTAL REQUEST: $166,397.00

Item 14.

27




BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item 16.

ITEM TITLE:

Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the SC Transportation Infrastructure Bank

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

Council, December 13, 2021

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Kurt Taylor, County Attorney

Time Needed for Item Discussion 3 min.

ITEM BACKGROUND:

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

The SCTIB requires council approval for the funding agreement for the Hwy 278 project

FISCAL IMPACT:

(Discuss Funding and Liability Factors- this enables the receipt of the funds from the SCTIB
(List Dollar Amount Requested/Needed)

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Approve the Resolution

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve/deny Resolution

28




RESOLUTION 2021/

WHEREAS, on or about July 24, 2019 (and supplemented thereafter), Beaufort County
(the “County”) submitted an application for financial assistance (the ”Application™) to the South
Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank (the “Bank™) for the purpose of receiving funds for
improvements to certain portions of US Highway 278 from Moss Creek Drive to Spanish Wells
Road in the county (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, subsequently, the Application received approval from the Bank on July 16,
2020; and

WHEREAS, the SC Department of Transportation Commission approved the financial
assistance at its meeting of July 16, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the financial assistance was approved by the Joint Bond Review Committee
of the SC General Assembly on August 11, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the Bank and the County now wish to enter into the Intergovernmental
Agreement provided by the Bank setting forth the respective responsibilities and obligations of
the parties for financial assistance for the Project (the “Intergovernmental Agreement”), as
revised.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Council of Beaufort
County, South Carolina, that:

1. County Council hereby approves entering into the Intergovernmental Agreement
with the Bank for the Bank’s financial assistance for the Project.

2. The County Administrator is authorized to execute and deliver the
Intergovernmental Agreement to the Bank, and is authorized to execute and enter into any
supplements or amendments to the Intergovernmental Agreement as may be necessary or helpful
from time to time.

Adopted this 13th day of December, 2021.

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

By:

Joseph Passiment
Chairman
ATTEST:

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council

Item 16.

29




INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY
IN BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

This Intergovernmental Agreement is made and entered into as of , 2021 by and
between BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (“the County”), a body politic and
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, and the SOUTH CAROLINA
TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE BANK, a body corporate and politic and an
instrumentality of the State of South Carolina (the “Bank”), which shall be collectively referred
hereinafter to as the “Parties,” and individually referred to hereinafter, where appropriate, as a or
the “Party,” concerning improvements of US 278 from Moss Creek Drive to Spanish Wells Road
hereinafter referred to as the “Project,” located in Beaufort County, South Carolina, which Project
is described in more detail here in below and in the County’s Application for Financial Assistance
submitted to the Bank, and this Intergovernmental Agreement is hereinafter referred to as the

“Agreement.”

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Bank was created for the purpose, among others, of selecting and assisting
in financing major transportation projects by providing Financial Assistance to government units
for constructing and improving highway facilities necessary for public purposes, including
economic development, as is more fully set forth in the South Carolina Transportation
Infrastructure Bank Act (“SCTIB Act”), S.C. Code Ann. §§ 11-43-110, ef seq. as amended;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the SCTIB Act, the Bank has all power necessary, useful, and
appropriate to provide grants, loans and other Financial Assistance in a manner as the Board
determines advisable; routinely provides such Financial Assistance; and solicited applications for
Financial Assistance pursuant to the authority granted in the SCTIB Act;

WHEREAS, by an Application submitted to the Bank on or about July 24, 2019, as
supplemented by other submissions to the Bank, the County requested Financial Assistance for the

Project;

Item 16.

30




WHEREAS, at a meeting on July 6, 2020, the Bank’s Evaluation Committee reviewed
applications for Financial Assistance and made recommendations to the Bank Board concerning
those applications, including the Application of the County;

WHEREAS, at a meeting on July 7, 2020, the Bank’s Board of Directors, hereinafter
referred to as the “Bank Board”, reviewed and considered its available funding capacity, the project
applications for funding, and the Evaluation Committee’s recommendations;

WHEREAS, at the meeting on July 7, 2020, the Bank Board determined that the Project
was eligible and qualified for Financial Assistance in the form of a grant and resolved to provide
the grant subject to certain conditions specified in the Resolution approved by the Bank Board or
contained within the Bank’s Overall Operating Guidelines, Procedures and Standard Conditions
for Financial Assistance;

WHEREAS, the SCDOT Commission reviewed and approved the Financial Assistance to
be provided to the Project by the Bank at its meeting on July 16, 2020;

WHEREAS, the Joint Bond Review Commiittee of the General Assembly reviewed and
approved the Financial Assistance to be provided to the Project by the Bank at its meeting on
August 11, 2020;

WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to set forth the respective responsibilities of the Parties
for the Project, including the funding of the Project;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits, promises and obligations set
forth herein, the sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and accepted by each Party hereto,

the Parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
1. Definitions
For purpose of this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms

shall have the following meanings:

“Account” means the account of the Bank maintained by the South Carolina State
Treasurer into which is deposited monies to fund Disbursements for Eligible Costs of the

Project.

Item 16.

31




“Act” means the South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank Act, which is codified

as South Carolina Code Annotated Sections 11-43-110, ef seq., as amended.

“Application” means the final Application for Financial Assistance submitted by the
County to the Bank on or about July 24, 2019, as supplemented by other materials
submitted by the County to the Bank prior to and after the date of the Application up
to the date on which the Bank Board approved Financial Assistance to the Project which
was July 7, 2020.

“Budget” means the budget established by the Bank for the Project.

“Contract” means any contracts authorized by law entered into by SCDOT or the County
with any other person or firm for engineering, design, construction, materials or similar

purposes for the Project.

“Disbursements” means the transfer or payment of monies pursuant to draw requests to
reimburse SCDOT or the County for Eligible Costs of construction of the Project or for the
payment of invoices approved by Bank and/or its designee for Eligible Costs of

construction of the Project incurred pursuant to a Contract.

“Eligible Cost(s)” has the same meaning as set forth in S.C. Code Ann. § 11-43-130(5) as
applied to qualified projects to be funded from the state highway account of the Bank, but
is limited on this Project to Eligible Costs related to actual construction of the Project.
Eligible Costs do not include those costs set forth in Section 6.2 of this Agreement that are

recognized in that section as not being Eligible Costs for the Project.

“Event of Default” means the breach by the County of a provision or obligation in this

Agreement, including any provision applicable to SCDOT.

“Financial Assistance” includes, but is not limited to, loans, grants, contributions, credit

enhancement, capital or debt reserves for bonds or debt instrument financing, interest rate

Item 16.

32




subsidies, provision of letters of credit and credit instruments, provision of bond or other
debt financing instrument security, and other lawful forms of financing and methods of
leveraging funds that are approved by the board, as contemplated by and described in the
SCTIB Act, S.C. Code Ann. §§ 43-11-110, et seq., as amended. However, for purposes of
this Agreement, Financial Assistance means a grant from the Bank not to exceed
$120,000,000.

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the State of South Carolina that runs from July 1 to
June 30.

“Project” means, for the purposes of this Agreement only, the improvements for US 278
from Moss Creek Drive to Spanish Wells Road in Beaufort County as described in the
Application, as updated, and revised up to the date on which the Bank approved Financial

Assistance for the Project which was July 7, 2020.

“SCDOT” means the South Carolina Department of Transportation.

ARTICLE Il
Term of Agreement
This Agreement shall be effective as of , 2021, and shall terminate,

except for specific provisions set forth herein that are expressly stated to survive the
termination of this Agreement, on the date the last of the following events occurs (i) the
Bank makes the final Disbursement on the Project; (ii) the final local financial contribution
or financial contribution from any source other than the Bank for the Project is received;
(iii) the Bank receives the final payment or reimbursement due it from the County pursuant
to the terms and provisions of this Agreement; or (iv) the Project, including all components,
is declared completed and accepted by the Bank (or alternatively, on projects managed by
SCDOT, accepted by SCDOT).

ARTICLE III
Funding Commitments of Parties

Item 16.

33




The total estimated cost of the Project is $292,350,000, which will be met by the funding
commitments described in more detail below.

3.1  Bank

Subject to the provisions, terms, and conditions in this Agreement, the Bank shall establish
a Budget for the Project within the Account of the Bank. From revenues and funds of the
Bank as determined by the Bank in its discretion, the Bank may deposit into the Account,
or credit the Budget, in such increments as it determines, Financial Assistance in the form
of grant(s) for the Project not to exceed $120,000,000. The Bank may make Disbursements
from the Account, pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement, to pay for Eligible Costs of the
Project incurred by the SCDOT on behalf of the County or the County on Contracts. This
grant shall be used only for Eligible Costs of the Project and shall be paid out through
Disbursements from the Account subject to the provisions of this Agreement, including

Section 6.

In no event at any time shall the Bank be required to increase its Financial Assistance,
grants, credits, disbursements, or contributions to the Project beyond $120,000,000 or to
disburse, advance, transfer or pay from its own monies in excess of $120,000,000 for the

Project.

Any savings or reductions in the total cost of the Project shall be credited against and reduce
the amount of the Bank’s grants to the Project. Furthermore, any additional state (other
than the Bank’s), county, municipal, regional government or private funds of any kind or
any Federal funds of any kind provided or available for the Project in any form other than
those identified in the Application that have been previously committed to the Project shall
offset and reduce the amount of the Bank’s grants for the Project on a dollar for dollar basis
unless those funds are needed, as determined by the Bank Board in its discretion, to
complete the Project in a manner consistent with its original scope or with an expanded or
upgraded scope approved by the Bank. To the extent allowed by applicable law, any funds

committed to or allocated for the Project from any source remaining after completion of

Item 16.

34




the Project must be transferred to the Bank by the County or SCDOT unless this obligation

is waived or modified by action of the Bank.

To the extent that Financial Assistance or a portion of that Financial Assistance, provided
by the Bank for the Project is subject to an annual appropriation made by the General
Assembly to the Bank as a matter of law, the provision by the Bank of that Financial
Assistance, or portion thereof, for the Project in each fiscal year of the State is subject to
an appropriation by the General Assembly to the Bank of funds sufficient to cover the
Disbursements for the Project for that fiscal year that need to be made from such an
appropriation. In the event the amount of any such appropriation required by law is not
sufficient for that purpose, the Bank shall confer and work with the County to reduce or
manage the amount of Financial Assistance used for the Project to an amount within the
appropriation to the Bank for the Project and all other sources of funds available to the
Bank for the Project for that fiscal year. If the appropriation required by law and all other
sources of funds available for the Project to the Bank are insufficient as determined by the
Bank to provide any Financial Assistance for the Project for a fiscal year, the Financial
Assistance from the Bank for the Project may be suspended by the Bank Board until
sufficient funds are appropriated by the General Assembly to the Bank and/or other
sources of funds are available to the Bank for the Project for such Financial Assistance to
resume. The suspension of Financial Assistance under this Section shall not constitute a

termination of, or a default of an obligation under, this Agreement.

3.2. Beaufort County
The County shall provide the local match funds and other financial contributions for the Project

that consist of the following sources:

A.
B.
C.

Beaufort County one-cent transportation sales tax in the amount of $80,000,000;
Beaufort County Road Impact fees in the amount $12,300,000; and
Beaufort County General Obligation Bonds in the amount of $7,000,000.

Item 16.

35




The County also represents, warrants, and covenants that it has secured binding legally

enforceable contributions and funds for the Project from the following sources:

A. Town of Hilton Head Right-of-Way dedication in the amount of $3,350,000;
B. Federal Guideshare Funds in the amount of $4,200,000; and
C. SCDOT Bridge Replacement Funds in the amount of $65,500,000.

The County and SCDOT must expend all of the financial contribution and funds for the Project
listed in Section 3.2, for Eligible Costs of the Project before the Bank will be obligated to pay

or reimburse any Eligible Costs on the Project.

The Bank shall be provided full and complete access by the County to all records and
information concerning the financial contributions and funds listed in this Section 3.2 and the

expenditures of those financial contributions and funds.

3.3. Funding Responsibilities if Project Costs Exceed Total Estimated Cost.

The County shall provide additional funding to complete the Project if the amount of monies
and funds needed to complete construction of the Project exceeds the current total estimated
costs of $$292,350,000, or if any funds or contributions to be provided for the Project by a
source other than the Bank, including those listed above in Section 3.2, are not received. As
stated in Section 3.1, the Bank’s maximum Financial Assistance for the Project shall not
exceed $120,000,000.

ARTICLE IV

Additional Obligations of Beaufort County

4.1 Additional Documents and Actions
A. At the request of the Bank, the County shall execute any other documents
that the Bank determines is reasonably necessary to evidence or establish the County’s

obligations to the Bank set forth in this Agreement.

Item 16.

36




Item 16.

B. The County acknowledges that the Bank in its discretion may raise funds
for its commitment to the Project and other qualified projects through the issuance of
revenue bonds or other indebtedness as permitted under the Act. Accordingly, the County
shall take such actions and enter into or provide such other documents or agreements,
including amendments to this Agreement or other agreements that are consistent with the
substance hereof, as may be reasonably necessary to comply with South Carolina laws and
regulations associated with such bonds or indebtedness or to satisfy requirements for
documentation and information reasonably imposed by the Bank, prospective purchasers
of such bonds, holders of such bonds, bond insurers, rating agencies, lenders or regulatory
agencies and their attorneys, advisors, and representatives; provided however, that such
actions, documents and agreements are legally permissible and that no such action or
document shall create any additional material obligation or increase any material obligation
of the County.

C. At the request of the Bank, the County shall enter into and execute any
amendments to this Agreement or a new intergovernmental agreement consolidating all or
some intergovernmental agreements between them, including this Agreement, into one
intergovernmental agreement, all in a form and with contents, provisions, and terms
acceptable to the Bank. The Parties acknowledge that certain permits, approvals and
authorizations are expected to be forthcoming as the Project progress, but they have not
been finalized as of the time of the execution hereof.

D. The County shall promptly provide the Bank upon request by it copies of

any and all contracts, agreements and documents relating to the Project.

4.2 Additional Warranties and Covenants of Beaufort County

In addition to other requirements and obligations contained within this Agreement, the

County warrants, covenants, and acknowledges that:

A. The County has full power and authority to execute, deliver and perform and to
enter into and carry out the transactions contemplated by the provisions in this
Agreement, and the execution and performance of these provisions and transactions

by the County does not and will not violate any applicable law and does not, and

37




will not, conflict with or result in a default under any agreement or instrument to
which the County is a party or by which it is bound, a violation of which would
cause a material adverse effect to the Bank. This Agreement has, by proper action,
been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the County.

This Agreement is valid, binding, and enforceable as to the County in accordance
with its terms, and the County shall perform their obligations as set forth in this
Agreement in accordance with its terms.

No further authorizations, consents or approvals of governmental bodies or
agencies are required in connection with the execution and delivery by the County
of this Agreement and the performance of its obligations hereunder, including the
obligations to provide all of the financial contributions and funds listed in Section
3.2 of this Agreement and to construct the Project.

No litigation at law or in equity, nor any proceeding before any governmental
agency or other tribunal involving the County is pending or, to the knowledge of
the County threatened, in which any judgment or order may be or has been
rendered, or is sought, that may have a material and adverse effect upon the
operations or assets of the County or would materially or adversely affect the
validity of this Agreement, or the performance by the County of its obligations
hereunder or the transactions contemplated hereby. The County will immediately
notify the Bank in writing if any such litigation or proceeding is commenced or
threatened at any time during the term of this Agreement.

To the maximum extent permitted by law of South Carolina, the County shall
defend, indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from and against any and all
liabilities, claims, or actions arising out of or relating to the project.

No further authorizations, consents or approvals of governmental bodies or
agencies are required in connection with the execution and delivery of the financial
contributions and funds listed in Section 3.2 of this Agreement to be provided by
entities other than the County.

The County has no knowledge of any pending or threatened litigation at law or in
equity, nor any proceeding before any governmental agency or other tribunal

involving the financial contributions and funds listed in Section 3.2 of this

Item 16.

38




4.3

Agreement to be provided by entities other than the County in which any judgment
or order may be or has been rendered, or is sought, that would materially or
adversely affect the validity of this Agreement or the performance by those other
entities of their respective obligations hereunder or the transactions contemplated
hereby. The County will immediately notify the Bank in writing if any such
litigation or proceeding is commenced or threatened at any time during the term of

this Agreement.

If requested by the Bank, the foregoing warranties and covenants contained in this
Agreement shall be confirmed by a written opinion issued to the Bank by legal
counsel for Beaufort County in a form and with conclusions satisfactory to the
Bank.

Reimbursement of Bank

If the Bank determines at any time that any Disbursements made by it on the Project
were for costs or expenses that were not Eligible Costs, were based on
misstatements of fact by the County, SCDOT, or third parties, or were for work,
services, or materials that do not meet the design and construction specifications
and standards of SCDOT and that have not been corrected to meet those
specifications and standards, the Bank, at its option, may require the County to
reimburse the Bank for all such costs and expenses and the County shall make such
reimbursements to the Bank. In the event that the County does not pay the full
amount of the reimbursement to the Bank within ninety (90) days of the date of the
notification to the County by the Bank that such reimbursement is due the Bank,
the County’s obligation to reimburse the Bank shall be subject to the provisions of
S.C. Code Ann. § 11-43-210 and Section 8.2 of this Agreement. In lieu of requiring
the payment of such reimbursement(s) by the County, the Bank may in its discretion
reduce the amount of the grant by the amount of the reimbursement due the Bank

under this section. This Section 4.3 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

10

Item 16.

39




Item 16.

B. If the Bank Board determines that (i) the County or SCDOT has abandoned the
Project, or any component thereof, at any time, (ii) the County or SCDOT has failed
to commence construction or pursue completion of the Project, including all
components, with due diligence after having received one written warning notice
from the Bank of such failure by the County or SCDOT no less than sixty (60)
days prior to the notification for reimbursement and the County or SCDOT
thereafter fail to commence and maintain pursuit of completion of the Project,
including all components, with due diligence during that sixty (60) day period, or
(iii) the County or SCDOT fails to commence construction of the Project by

or complete the Project, including all components, by December 31,
2028, the County shall reimburse the Bank fully for all Disbursements within ninety
(90) days of the date of the notification to the County by the Bank that such
reimbursement is due the Bank and stating the reason(s) for such reimbursement.
Further, in that event, all Disbursements for the Project shall cease, and the Bank
shall have no further obligations to the County under this Agreement. If the County
fails to make such reimbursements in full to the Bank within that ninety (90) day
period, the County’s obligation to reimburse the Bank shall be subject to the
provisions of S.C. Code Ann. § 11-43-210 and Section 8.2 of this Agreement. In
the event exigent circumstances prevent the County or the SCDOT on behalf of
Beaufort County from commencing or completing the Project by the dates
identified above, the Bank may in its discretion, but is not required to, grant an
extension of the commencement or completion date identified above on such terms

and conditions as it may determine.

C. The County shall reimburse the Bank promptly for all reasonable costs and
expenses incurred by the Bank in responding to requests for records and
information submitted to it pursuant to the South Carolina Freedom of Information
Act (FOIA) relating to the Project after the Bank provides the County a written
itemization of such costs and expenses and a copy of the request. Prior to seeking

reimbursement from the County, the Bank will make a reasonable effort to collect

11

40




such costs and expenses from the person or entity requesting such records or

information pursuant to the FOIA.

4.4 Project Reporting
The County shall report in writing to the Bank at least quarterly on the status of the Project,

including, but not limited to, reports on the status of design, right-of-way acquisition,
environmental approvals, construction, scheduled draw requests, costs to date, estimated
costs to complete the Project, project changes, and any other matters identified or requested

by the Bank. The report shall be in a form acceptable to the Bank.

ARTICLE V

Project Administration and Related Matters

5.1  Project Administration
SCDOT on behalf of the County will administer and manage the Project. SCDOT shall

approve the design and construction of the Project. SCDOT shall be responsible for all
engineering, right-of-way acquisition, and construction for the Project and may perform all
or any part of the work with its own forces or may contract out any of the work or services
to outside private or governmental consultants or contractors should it determine that such
contracting out would be more efficient or would result in more timely completion of the
Project. SCDOT shall enter into Contracts in its own name. All rights-of-way shall be
acquired in the name of SCDOT, and the laws and procedures of the State of South Carolina
for acquiring rights-of-way shall apply and be followed. At its option, the Bank at any time
may require that the County request SCDOT to accept the conveyance of any or all
such rights-of-way, and if SCDOT grants the request, the County shall complete that
conveyance. Any rights-of-way acquired by the County or SCDOT but not needed for the
Project shall be conveyed to the Bank at no cost to the Bank upon its request. SCDOT
shall be entitled to draw, and be paid hereunder, its normal and customary rates for its
services that are Eligible Costs of the Project. All work, services and materials used on the
Project shall conform to the standards and specifications required by SCDOT, and for the
Project to be accepted by SCDOT into the State Highway System. The County or SCDOT

shall complete the Project and open the Project for public use upon such completion.

12

Item 16.

41




52 Scope of Project

The scope of work of the Project shall be generally as set forth in the in the definition of
Project in Section 1 of this Agreement. Any material changes in that scope of the Project
proposed by the County or SCDOT shall require the review and approval of the Bank Board
of Directors and be stated in an amendment to this Agreement. Material change includes,
but is not limited to, a change to the Project that (a) requires a revision of the Record of
Decision issued by FWHA, the permit(s) issued by the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers, or
the permits, approvals or authorizations required for the Project issued by other Federal or
State Regulatory Agencies; or (b) materially changes the overall design or purpose of the

Project; or (c) materially increases the total cost of the Project.

5.3  Project Maintenance
The County shall be responsible for and shall provide maintenance for all improvements

and components of the Project after completion of that Project unless and until SCDOT
accepts that responsibility in writing. Prior to completion of the Project, the County shall
seek the written agreement or written commitment of SCDOT to provide maintenance for
the improvements and components of the Project and provide the Bank a copy of that
agreement or commitment if obtained. The County shall continue to provide maintenance
of such improvements and components of the Project in perpetuity for which SCDOT does
not accept responsibility for maintenance. The County shall make all modifications to the
Project required by SCDOT for SCDOT to accept responsibility for maintenance of the

Project.

5.4 Contracting Methods
SCDOT on behalf of the County shall solicit contractor, construction and consultant

services, and materials needed to complete the Project by the procurement methods it
deems will result in the selection of the best qualified firms and vendors, the lowest
responsible contract price, and the best value for the Project as long as it is authorized by
law to employ such methods. Contract forms shall be design-build, design-bid-build, or

any other form or combination of forms or project phases that are permissible by law that

13

Item 16.

42




SCDOT determines will result in the most cost-effective, efficient, and timely delivery and

completion of the Project.

5.5  Bonds and Insurance

SCDOT on behalf of the County shall require that the contractor for the Project provide
and maintain throughout the life of the project the same types and amounts of payment
bonds, performance bonds, and insurance coverages that the SCDOT usually requires from

contractors on projects that it manages.

SCDOT on behalf of the County shall require that subcontractors, engineering or design
firms, and other vendors and providers on the Project provide and maintain the same types
and amounts of payment bonds, performance bonds, and insurance coverages that SCDOT
or the County usually requires from subcontractors, engineering or design firms, and other

vendors and providers on projects it manages.

The County shall obtain and provide the Bank proof of such required bonds and insurance
coverages prior to each respective contractor, subcontractor, engineering or design firm,
vendor and provider commencing the provision of services or materials on the Project. The
County shall certify to the Bank in writing between July 1 and July 30 of each year during
the life of the Project that all such required bonds and insurance coverages remain in force.
The County shall immediately notify the Bank in writing if any required bonds or insurance
coverages lapse or are terminated. The Bank may decline to make payments or
Disbursements for any services or materials provided by any contractor, subcontractor,
firm, vendor, or provider on which any required bonds or insurance coverages have lapsed

or been terminated until such lapse or termination is corrected to the satisfaction of the
Bank.

Upon request, the County promptly shall obtain and provide the Bank copies of any

required bonds and any certificates or policies for any required insurance coverages.

ARTICLE VI

14

Item 16.

43




6.1

Conditions to Bank’s Disbursements and Draw Requests

Conditions to Bank’s Disbursements and Draw Requests
The Bank’s obligation to make Disbursements for Eligible Costs arises only upon the

Bank’s receipt, review, and approval of a draw request from the County or SCDOT, which

draw request shall be in a form approved by the Bank, and is further conditioned upon all

of the following conditions being met:

A.

No lien or other interest may have attached to a Contract or Project, nor to any
rights-of-way, real property or improvements related thereto.

Construction of the completed portions of the Project described in the relevant
Contract shall have been carried out substantially in accordance with the applicable
plans, standards, and specifications.

No event of default exists under this Agreement, any related agreement with the
Bank or SCDOT, or any Contract.

No event or condition shall have occurred or arisen which prevents the Bank from
obtaining funds sufficient to complete its Financial Assistance to the Project, and
no other matches or contributions listed in Section 3.2 of this Agreement have failed
to be provided on the schedule approved by the Bank or required by the Agreement.
The County has fulfilled all of the warranties, covenants and obligations set forth
in this Agreement.

The County or SCDOT shall have certified that the entire payment applied for in
the draw request is for Eligible Costs of the Project and that the design of and work
on the Project and materials used in the Project comply with the terms of applicable
Contracts, the approved plans, and the applicable standards of SCDOT.

Any material changes in the scope of the Project has been approved by Bank, this
Agreement has been modified or amended as determined necessary by the Bank,
and additional approvals from the Joint Bond Review Committee, SCDOT, and any

other governmental entities have been obtained as determined necessary by the
Bank.

15

Item 16.

44




H.

6.2

The County warrants that no litigation, nor any proceeding before any
governmental agency involving the Project or the County is pending, or to the
knowledge of the County, threatened, in which any potentially adverse outcome
would have a materially adverse impact on the ability of the project sponsor to meet
its obligations under its Financial Assistance arrangement with the Bank and this
Agreement.

Any entities, agencies or firms providing financial contributions, grants funds, or
assistance to, or otherwise participating in, the Project have executed any other
documents, agreements or instruments that are required by the Bank to evidence or
establish their obligations to the Bank and/or the Project in a form and with contents

acceptable to the Bank.

Costs Not Paid or Reimbursed

The Bank will not make Disbursements for or pay or reimburse expenses, expenditures or

costs of the following which are hereby deemed and defined as not qualified as Eligible

Costs under this Agreement:

A.

Any costs, expenses, expenditures, attorneys’ fees, damages, awards, judgments
or settlements arising from, or alleged to arise from, permits for the Project; claims,
or legal or administrative actions or proceedings of any kind, asserted under any
Federal, state, local or government agency law, ordinance or regulation, for
condemnations; inverse condemnations; regulatory takings; physical takings;
trespasses; nuisances of any kind; flooding; damages to real or personal property
or interests of any kind; diminutions in real or personal property values; loss of
road, street, highway or other access; environmental, noise, visual, odor or similar
damages or impacts; similar demands, assertions or allegations; or payments or
obligations established under any compensation programs or plans established by

the SCDOT or the County or any other entity.

Any costs, expenses, expenditures, damages, awards, judgments, or settlements
arising from, or alleged to arise from, any claims, disputes, proceedings, or lawsuits

of any kind, including disputes between the County, SCDOT, and any third parties;

16

Item 16.

45




C. Landscaping and beautification for the Project other than for required grassing or
other erosion control measures or replacement or repair of trees, vegetation or

landscaping affected by construction of the Project.

D. Excessive or unreasonable attorneys’, engineering or other professional fees or
expenses based on the lesser amount of reasonable fees and expenses as determined by
applicable industry standards or what State agencies, including SCDOT and the South
Carolina Attorney General’s Office, usually pay or authorize for such services, fees,
and expenses.

E. Any costs that are not for the actual construction of the Project.

ARTICLE VII

Indemnification of Bank

To the maximum extent permitted by the law of South Carolina, the County shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Bank and its Bank Board members, officers and employees
harmless from and against any and all liabilities, claims, actions, damages, judgments and
attorneys’ fees and related expenses and costs in any way arising out of or relating to the
design, location, construction, modification, funding, pursuit, implementation, completion
or operation of the Project, or any portion or component thereof, or this Agreement or any
contract, or the selection, use or payment of persons or firms for design, construction,
modification, or operation of the Project, or any portion or component thereof. In the event
the County does not pay the full amount of any such indemnification to the Bank within
ninety (90) days of the date of the notification to the County that such indemnification is
due the Bank, the County’s obligation to pay the Bank for such indemnification shall be
subject to the provisions of S.C. Code Ann. § 11-43-210 and Section 8.2 of this Agreement.
In lieu of requiring the payment of such indemnification by the County, the Bank may in
its discretion reduce the amount of the grant stated in Section 3.1 of this Agreement by the
amount of the indemnification due the Bank under this section. This Section 7 shall survive

the termination of this Agreement.

17

Item 16.

46




ARTICLE VIII

Bank’s Rights and Remedies

8.1 Events of Default as to Beaufort County

In the event the County shall violate or fail to comply with any provision in or obligation

under this Agreement (including other agreements and obligations incorporated herein) and

if such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of a written notice of

such default from the Bank, such failure shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder.

8.2

Remedies as to Beaufort County

Whenever any Event of Default occurs, any one or more of the following remedies may be

pursued by and shall be available to the Bank against the County in addition to those

provided in other sections of this Agreement:

A.

As to any Event of Default, any obligation or duty the County failed to perform
shall be deemed a ministerial act and subject to the remedies of mandamus and
mandatory injunction requiring the County to perform the obligation or duty, and
the Bank shall be deemed to have no adequate remedy at law for such Event of
Default.

Among other rights and remedies available to the Bank following an uncured Event
of Default, the Bank shall have the right to cease making any further Disbursements
under this Agreement with respect to the Project until such Event of Default has
been cured and the right to require the County to reimburse it for any or all
Disbursements on the Project. The Bank shall also have and may pursue any other
remedies available under South Carolina law, except as such remedies may be
expressly limited by the specific provisions of this Agreement.

The County shall pay the Bank the reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred
by the Bank in pursuing any remedy for an Event of Default.

In the event the County fails to make any payment or reimbursement to the Bank
in full as required by this Agreement, it acknowledges the authority of the State
Treasurer under S.C. Code Ann. § 11-43-210 to withhold funds allotted or

18

Item 16.

a7




appropriated by the State to the County and to apply those funds to make or
complete any such payment in full to the Bank. The County agrees that the current
provisions of Section 11-43-210 are hereby incorporated into this Agreement
verbatim as an independent and separate contractual obligation of the County and
shall be enforceable against Beaufort County and survive even if S.C. Code Ann. §
11-43-210 is repealed or its application is reduced or amended by action of the
General Assembly, or it is otherwise abrogated, or its application is reduced or
modified by a court or court decision. The Bank will notify the County prior to

requesting that the State Treasurer withhold such funds.

8.3 Remedies Cumulative; Nonwaiver

All rights and remedies of the Bank provided for in this Agreement or in any other related
document as to any Party or other entity are cumulative, shall survive the termination of
this Agreement, and shall be in addition to any and all other related rights and remedies
provided for or available to the Bank at law, including those contained in the Act, or in
equity. The exercise of, or the failure to exercise, any right or remedy by the Bank shall
not in any way constitute a cure or waiver of an Event of Default or the waiver of any right
or remedy available to the Bank, nor invalidate any act done pursuant to any notice of the

occurrence of an Event of Default.

ARTICLE IX

General Conditions and Provisions

9.1 Waivers

No waiver of any Event of Default by the Bank hereunder shall be implied from any delay
or omission by the Bank to take action on account of such Event of Default, and no express
waiver shall affect any Event of Default other than the Event of Default specified in the
waiver and it shall be operative only for the time and to the extent therein stated. Waivers
of any covenants, terms or conditions contained herein by either Party must be in writing
and shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent or other breach of the same

covenant, term, or condition. The consent or approval by a Party to or of any act by the

19

Item 16.

48




other Party requiring further consent or approval shall not be deemed to waive or render
unnecessary the consent or approval to or of any subsequent or similar act. No single or
partial exercise of any right or remedy of the Bank hereunder shall preclude any further or
later exercise thereof or the exercise of any other or different right or remedy by a non-

defaulting Party.

9.2  Benefit and Rights of Third Parties
This Agreement is made and entered into for the sole protection and benefit of the Parties,

and their successors and assigns. No other persons, firms, entities, or parties shall have any
rights, or standing to assert any rights, under this Agreement in any manner, including, but
not limited to, any right to any Disbursements at any time, any right to require any Party to
apply any portion of the amounts committed herein that have not been disbursed to the
payment of any such claim, or any right to require any Party to exercise any right or power
under this Agreement or arising from any Event of Default of any kind by any Party. Nor
shall the Bank owe any duty or have any obligation whatsoever to any claimant for labor
or services performed or materials or supplies furnished in connection with the Project. No
other persons, firms, entities, or parties shall, under any circumstances, be deemed to be a
beneficiary of any conditions or obligations set forth in this Agreement, any or all of which
may be freely waived in whole or in part by the Bank at any time pursuant to Section

9.1 of this Agreement, if in its sole discretion, it deems it desirable to do so.

9.3 No Liability of Bank

The Bank makes no representations and assumes no obligations or duties as to any person,
firm, entity, or party, including the Parties to this Agreement, concerning the quality of the
design, construction, modification, completion or operation of the Project, or any portion
or component thereof, or the absence therefrom of defects of any kind. The Bank and its
Bank Board members, officers and employees shall not be liable in any manner to any
person, firm, entity, or party, including the Parties to this Agreement, for the design,
location, construction, modification, completion, or operation of the Project, or the failure
to design, locate, modify, operate, complete, or construct the Project or any portion or

component thereof, generally or in any particular manner. The Bank shall not be liable in

20

Item 16.

49




any manner on any Contract to which it is not a named party, the execution of which has
not been properly and duly authorized by the Board, and that has not been so executed by
the Bank.

94  Assignment
The terms hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and

assigns of the Parties hereto; provided, however, the Parties shall not assign or delegate
this Agreement, any of its respective rights, interest, duties, or obligations under this
Agreement, nor any Disbursements without the prior written consent of the other Parties;
and any such attempted assignment or delegation (whether voluntary or by operation by

law) without said consent shall be void.

9.5  Captions
The captions herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in

no way define, limit, or describe the scope of this Agreement nor the intent or meaning of

any provision hereof.

9.6 Notices

All notices required to be given hereunder, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
must be in writing and shall be deemed effective when received by the other Party, through
certified mail, registered mail, personal delivery, or courier delivery. All such notices shall

be addressed to the Parties as follows:

Beaufort County
Beaufort County Administrator

100 Ribaut Road
Beaufort, South Carolina 29902

South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank
Chairman

South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank

21

Item 16.

50




955 Park Street
Columbia, SC 29201

9.7 Amendments
Any amendment to this Agreement shall only be made through a written instrument duly

authorized and signed by each Party hereto.

9.8  Savings Clause
Invalidation of any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement by any court of

competent jurisdiction shall in no way affect any of the other provisions hereof, all of which
shall remain, and is intended by the Parties to remain, in full force and effect.
Notwithstanding the following sentence, in the event that a court invalidates or modifies
any one or more provisions, in whole or in part, of this Agreement, the Bank may in its
discretion terminate this Agreement by providing notification of such termination to the
County, and upon providing such notification to the County, all of the Bank’s obligations

under this Agreement shall terminate immediately.

9.9  Execution in Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be

deemed to be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument,
and in making proof of this Agreement it shall not be necessary to produce or account for

more than one such fully executed counterpart.

9.10  Authority to Execute
By executing this Agreement, the undersigned signatory each affirms and certifies that he

or she has authority to bind his or her principal which is a Party to this Agreement thereto
and that all necessary acts have been taken to duly authorize this Agreement under

applicable law.

22

Item 16.

51




[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGES FOR EACH PARTY FOLLOW]

23

Item 16.

52




Item 16.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Beaufort County has caused this Agreement to be executed on
its behalf and its seal to be affixed hereto.
BEAUFORT COUNTY, South Carolina

ol K P

Printed Name: E_Afe(c— 1’\ B 6(’%

Title: COQ \(\‘V{\ ‘L(\_)N\\Q} SHAUXTO -

Attest:

By: é M’Z’O fe HMM

Printed Name: KAC':{/ 5. /40!/::3‘

Title: , ‘
%é nwlii tmivpuoFralo)

(SEAL)

Note: This Agreement was approved on

NW’DD . 2021,

24

53




SIGNATURE PAGE FOR BANK

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the South 